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November 16, 2018
To the Honorable Board of Directors and
Citizens of the West County Wastewater District:

State statutes require an annual audit by an independent certified public accountant.  
This report is published to fulfill that requirement for the year ended June 30, 2018.

Management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of the 
information contained in this report, based upon a comprehensive framework of 
internal controls that it has established for this purpose.  Cost of internal control 
should not exceed anticipated benefits; therefore, the objective is to provide 
reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance that the financial statements are free of 
any material misstatement.

Cropper Accountancy Corporation, Certified Public Accountants, have issued an 
unmodified opinion on the West County Wastewater District’s (District) financial 
statements for the year ended June 30, 2018.  The independent auditor’s report is 
located at the front of the financial section of this report.

Management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the independent 
auditor’s report and provides a narrative introduction, overview and analysis of the 
basic financial statements, complements this letter of transmittal and should be read 
in conjunction with it.

PROFILE OF THE DISTRICT
The District (formerly the San Pablo Sanitary District) was organized on December 19, 
1921 and reorganized under the Sanitary District Act of 1923.  In 1978, the District 
changed its name to West Contra Costa Sanitary District and in 1992 changed again to 
West County Wastewater District.  The District has existed for 97 years for the 
purpose of protecting and serving the public health of the community and the 
environment by safely and responsibly collecting and treating wastewater for reuse.  
The District is an independent Special District and is not financially responsible for 
any other governmental entity nor is it a component unit of another governmental 
entity.

The District prepares a Two-Year Comprehensive Budget that is approved by the 
Board of Directors.

The District is located in the western section of the County of Contra Costa 
approximately 28 miles northeast of San Francisco and 12 miles north of Oakland.  
The District’s service area encompasses 16.9 square miles all within the County of 
Contra Costa.  Roughly 6.8 square miles (or 40% of the total) lie within the 
boundaries of the City of Richmond, 2.5 square miles (or 15% of the total) lie within 
the City of San Pablo, 0.4 square miles (or 2% of the total) within the City of Pinole 
and the remaining 7.2 square miles (or 43% of the total) are in the unincorporated
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areas of the County of Contra Costa.  The District’s service area is fairly hilly, typical 
of the California coastal region.  The population of the District is approximately 
102,000.  The District contains approximately 38,000 parcels. The District is governed 
by a five-member Board of Directors elected at large for four-year over-lapping terms.  
The President is elected by members of the Board, customarily for a one-year term of 
office.  The District’s daily functions are administered by a General Manager who 
serves at the pleasure of the Board of Directors.

The District’s operation includes sewage collection, treatment, disposal, and resuse.  
The District also provides contract services to neighboring communities to maintain 
various local government facilities.  Since February 1977, the District participates in 
the West County Agency (WCA), a joint powers authority, with the City of Richmond, 
and the Richmond Municipal Sewer District for the purpose of constructing and 
maintaining effluent and sludge disposal facilities.

The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, the California Regional Water Quality 
Control Board, the California Health Services Department, as well as other regulatory 
agencies provide the permits and standards that the District must meet in order to 
collect, treat, recycle, reuse and dispose of wastewater.

LOCAL ECONOMY
The real estate economy continues to improve with the median home sale price in San 
Pablo increasing to approximately $448,900.  This had a positive impact on the 
District’s property tax revenues.

The District’s Board of Directors maintains sound fiscal policies and closely monitors 
expenses.  The District’s annual Environmental Quality (Sewer Use) Charge increased 
to $519 per single family residence for Fiscal Year 2018 and even with this increase, it 
remains one of the lowest among neighboring Bay Area sanitary sewer providers.

LONG TERM PLANNING
Environmental Quality (Sewer Use) Charge revenues are the main source of revenue 
for the District.  The District partially funds capital replacement costs through 
operating revenues. The District has established various reserves including:  Insurance 
Fund Reserve, State Revolving Fund Reserve and Operating and Capital Fund Reserves.  
The District’s Board of Directors reviews reserve levels annually as part of the budget 
process to determine whether the levels established provide for the financial security 
required of a fiscally responsible local government.

In addition to the Environmental Quality (Sewer Use) Charges, additional sources of 
revenue includes, but are not limited to: fees for new connections; permits and 
inspections; land leases; contract services; property taxes; and interest, any of which 
may be used to fund capital asset additions and replacements. The District has 
secured low interest loans and grants from the State Water Resources Control Board to 
provide funding for certain identified capital projects.

RELEVENT FINANCIAL POLICIES
A utility or other enterprise government agency is a self-supporting operation of a 
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commercial nature and the appropriate level of revenues and expenses is largely 
determined by the demand for service.  Depending upon the timing and level of 
demand for service, the expenses will vary.  Accordingly, the District’s budgetary 
controls are established at the levels of total estimated expenses.

MAJOR INITIATIVES
The District strives to protect public health and San Francisco Bay by providing our 
communities with wastewater collection and treatment for reuse or disposal in an 
environmentally responsible, efficient and reliable manner.

The District adopted a 20-year District-Wide Master Plan to address its infrastructure 
needs and has determined that it is necessary to borrow from the California State 
Water Resources Control Board State Revolving Fund to finance some of the identified 
projects.  The impact of the Master Plan will be felt in District operations, capital 
program and rates for the next 30 years.

AWARDS & ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS
In recognition of its outstanding work, the District has received Platinum and Gold 
awards from the National Association of Clean Water Agencies (NACWA) for 15 
consecutive years in recognition of compliance with its National Pollutant Discharge 
Elimination System (NPDES) permit.

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) 
awarded the Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to West 
County Wastewater District for its comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) for 
the fiscal year ending June 30, 2017. This was the 20th consecutive year that the 
District has been recognized for its financial reporting. In order to be awarded, a 
Certificate of Achievement, a government must publish an easily readable and 
efficiently organized CAFR. This report must satisfy both generally accepted 
accounting principles (GAAP) and applicable legal requirements. 

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that 
our current CAFR continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s 
requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for 
another certificate.    

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) 
awarded the Distinguished Budget Presentation Award to West County Wastewater 
District for its Biennial Budget for Fiscal Years 2018 & 2019. This was the 4th 

consecutive year that the District has been recognized for its Budget Presentation. 

The Special District Leadership Foundation recognized the District in December 2017 
for its completion of all transparency program requirements designed to promote 
transparency in operations and governance to the public and other stakeholders.

American Public Works Association, Northern California Chapter recognized the 
District in 2016 for Environment Project of the Year – North Richmond Pump Station 
Stormwater Diversion Project (as an essential partner in the development and 
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The West County Wastewater District received the Government Finance Officers 
Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded the Certificate of 
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to West County Wastewater 
District for its comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ending 
June 30, 2018. 
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WEST COUNTY WASTEWATER DISTRICT
Mission Statement, Vision Statement, and Core Values

Mission Statement
The mission of the West County Wastewater District is to protect public health and 
the environment by safely and responsibly collecting and treating wastewater for 
reuse.

Vision
In the next 5 years, the District is striving to become a great place to work where we 
use the latest proven technology and best industry practices to care for District 
resources, enhance our environment and collaborate with our partners and 
community.

Core Values
The District’s Core Values serve as a guidepost and framework for consistent decision 
making when the District is faced with options and alternatives.  They are intended 
to be constant over the long term.  The District's Core Values for consistent decision 
making are Trust, Accountability, Leadership, and Collaboration.
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WEST COUNTY WASTEWATER DISTRICT
Principal Officials and Management

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Audrey L. Comeaux
President

Harry Wiener David Alvarado
Vice President Director

Leonard McNeil Sherry Stanley
Director Director

Legal Counsel

Mr. Alfred A. Cabral
Pelletreau, Alderson and Cabral

Management

Lisa Malek-Zadeh, Interim General Manager
Gordon Times, Acting Water Quality Manager
Deborah Muchmore, Human Resources Advisor*

John Haig, Engineering Services Advisor*
Glenn Lazof, Transition Business Services Advisor*

* Employees of Regional Government Services
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WEST COUNTY WASTEWATER DISTRICT
District Map
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Directors 
West County Wastewater District 
Richmond, California 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities of West County 
Wastewater District as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements as listed in the table 
of contents. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinions. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the business-type activities of West County Wastewater District as of 
June 30, 2018, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof  
for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America. 
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Emphasis of Matter 
 
Change in Accounting Principle 
 
As discussed in Note 7 to the financial statements, in 2018 the District adopted new accounting guidance, 
GASBS No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. 
Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter. 
 
Other Matters 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
  
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s 
discussion and analysis on pages 19 – 25, the Schedule of the District’s Proportionate Share of the 
Plan’s Pension Liability and Schedule of The District’s Contributions to the Pension Plan on page 58, 
Schedule of Changes in the Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios on page 59, and Schedule of OPEB 
Contributions on page 60 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, 
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic 
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied 
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of 
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion 
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with 
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
 
June 30, 2017 Financial Statements 
 
The financial statements of West County Wastewater District as of June 30, 2017, were audited by other 
auditors whose report dated January 24, 2018, expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements. We 
have presented the basic financial statements for comparative purposes only and, accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion or provide any assurance on them. 
 
Other Information 
  
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise West County Wastewater District’s basic financial statements. The introductory 
section and statistical section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part 
of the basic financial statements. 
 
Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial 
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or 
to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America.  
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WEST COUNTY WASTEWATER DISTRICT
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2018

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (“MD&A”) is designed to focus on the current and prior 
year’s activities, resulting changes, and currently known facts. It should be read in 
conjunction with the District’s basic financial statements. The MD&A also provides 
information regarding the economic factors affecting the District and financial contact 
information.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
 The District had a net position balance of $96.5 million at June 30, 2018. Total net

position was comprised of net investment in capital assets of $85.3 million, restricted for
loan repayment of $1.8 million, and unrestricted assets of $9.4 million. Net position
increased by $3.1 million (after prior period adjustment) for fiscal year 2018 and $11.8
million for fiscal year 2017. The prior period adjustment of $3.9 million resulted from the
implementation of GASB 75 for reporting post-employment medical benefits.

 The District’s total operating revenues for fiscal year 2018 were $21.6 million and total
operating expenses were $19.5 million, resulting in net operating income of $2.1 million.
This compares to net operating income of $2.6 million for fiscal year 2017 and $2.1 million
for fiscal year 2016.

 The District’s non-operating revenues for fiscal year 2018 were $2.0 million, consisting of
property taxes, redevelopment allocation, rental income, and investment earnings. This
compares to $1.4 million for fiscal year 2017 and $1.5 million for fiscal year 2016. Non-
operating expenses for fiscal year 2018 were $487,000, consisting of interest expense and
loss on disposal of assets. This compares to $109,000 for fiscal year 2017, primarily the
valuation allowance on the ex-General Manger advance and no non-operating expense for
fiscal year 2016.

 Capital contributions were $3.4 million for fiscal year 2018, comprised of State capital
construction grants ($2.0 million) and customer connection fees ($1.4 million). This
compares to capital contributions of $7.9 million for fiscal year 2017, comprised of State
capital construction grants ($6.9 million) and customer connection fees ($1.0 million).
Capital contributions were $0.5 million for fiscal year 2016, consisting of customer
connection fees.

USING THE COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
The comprehensive annual financial report consists of this MD&A, a series of basic financial 
statements (described below) and notes to those statements. These statements are organized 
so the reader can understand the District as a financial whole. The statements provide an 
increasingly detailed look at specific financial activities. The basic financial statements also 
include notes that explain some of the information in the financial statements and provide 
more detailed data.

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The District consists exclusively of one Enterprise (Business) Fund. Enterprise funds utilize the 
full accrual basis of accounting. The Enterprise method of accounting is similar to accounting 
utilized by the private sector accounting.
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WEST COUNTY WASTEWATER DISTRICT
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2018

Statement of Net Position:  The Statement of Net Position is designed to represent the net 
available liquid (non-capital) assets, net of liabilities, for the District. Net Position is reported 
in three broad categories within the Statement of Net Position:

 Net Position, Invested in Capital Assets, Net of related Debt: This component of Net
Position consists of all Capital Assets, reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds,
mortgages, notes or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition,
construction, or improvement of those assets.

 Restricted Net Position: This component of Net Position consists of restricted assets; when
constraints are placed on the asset by creditors (such as debt covenants), grantors,
contributors, laws, regulations, etc.

 Unrestricted Net Position: Consists of Net Position that do not meet the definition of “Net
Position Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt”, or “Restricted Net Position”.

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position: This statement is similar to an 
Income Statement and includes Operating Revenues and Expenses, and Non-Operating 
Revenue and Expenses. The focus of this Statement is the “Change in Net Position”, which is 
similar to Net Income or Loss.

Statement of Cash Flows: This statement discloses net cash provided by, or used for, 
operating activities, non-capital financing activities, and from capital and related financing 
activities.
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WEST COUNTY WASTEWATER DISTRICT
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2018

SUMMARY OF THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
The following table reflects the condensed statement of Net Position for the current and two 
preceding fiscal years. The District is engaged only in Business-Type Activities.

Major Factors Affecting the Statement of Net Position
 98% of current assets consist of cash and equivalents at June 30, 2018. Current assets

increased by $5.6 million from fiscal year 2017 to 2018, primarily due to receipts in excess
of expenditures. Current assets increased by $12.0 million from fiscal year 2016 to 2017,
primarily due to loan receipts in excess of capital spending.

 See Table 3 for a discussion of Capital Asset changes and Table 4 for a discussion of loan
activity.

 Deferred outflows of resources increased by $2.3 million from fiscal year 2017 to 2018 and
by $2.1 million from fiscal year 2016 to 2017, as a result of GASB 75 and 68 Deferred
Outflows. This is discussed in Notes 8 and 9 to Financial Statements starting on page 44.

 Current liabilities consist of accounts payable, payroll related liabilities, the current
portion of loans, and interest payable. Current liabilities increased $4.2 million from fiscal
year 2017 to 2018 and increased $0.1 million from fiscal year 2016 to 2017, primarily due
to capital asset spending.

TABLE 1

Statement of Net Position

% Increase % Increase

(Decrease) (Decrease)

2018 2017 2016 2018 vs. 2017 2017 vs. 2016

Assets:

Current Assets 32,777,950$   27,185,179$  15,224,589$  20.57% 78.56%

Capital Assets 116,926,919   105,000,168  82,570,051   11.36% 27.16%

Other Non-Current Assets 670,721        612,447        -100.00% 9.51%

Total Assets 149,704,869   132,856,068  98,407,088   12.68% 35.01%

Deferred Outflows of Resources 5,401,992      3,189,791     1,103,034     69.35% 189.18%

Total Assets and Deferred Outflows 

of Resources 155,106,861$ 136,045,859$ 99,510,122$  14.01% 36.72%

Liabilities: 

Current Liabilities 9,450,768$    5,283,079$   5,177,218$   78.89% 2.04%

Non-Current Liabilities 48,003,012    36,483,938   11,501,875   31.57% 217.20%

Total Liabilities 57,453,780    41,767,017   16,679,093   37.56% 150.42%

Deferred Inflows of Resources 1,172,404      934,787        1,298,626     25.42% -28.02%

Net Position:

Net Investment in Capital Assets 85,238,747    79,395,084   82,570,051   7.36% -3.85%

Restricted 1,861,014      918,426        102.63%

Unrestricted 9,380,916      13,030,545   (1,037,648)    -28.01%

Total Net Position 96,480,677    93,344,055   81,532,403   3.36% 14.49%

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of 

Resources and Net Position 155,106,861$ 136,045,859$ 99,510,122$  14.01% 36.72%
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WEST COUNTY WASTEWATER DISTRICT
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2018

 Non-current liabilities increased from fiscal year 2017 to 2018 by $11.5 million, primarily
due to net debt borrowings ($5.4 million), increase in net OPEB liability ($4.3 million) and
increase in net pension liability ($1.9 million).  Long-term liabilities increased from fiscal
year 2016 to 2017 by $25.0 million, primarily due to debt borrowings ($22.3 million) and
the increase in net pension liability ($2.7 million).

 The District had outstanding debt of $31.7 million at June 30, 2018 and $25.6 million at
June 30, 2017. See Table 4 for a discussion of loan activity.

 See Table 3 for a discussion of Net Position Invested in Capital Assets changes.
 Net Position unrestricted decreased by $3.6 million from fiscal year 2017 to 2018, due to

the increase before capital contributions of $3.6 million, capital contributions of $3.4
million, less the GASB 75 prior period adjustment of $3.9 million, increase in net
investment in capital assets of $5.8 million, and increase in Restricted Net Position of $0.9
million. Net Position unrestricted increased from fiscal year 2016 to 2017 by $14.1 million,
due to capital contributions of $7.9 million, the increase before capital contributions of
$3.9 million, decrease in net investment in capital assets of $3.2 million, less increase in
Restricted Net Position of $0.9 million. Net Position Invested in Capital Assets Net of
related Debt increased from fiscal year 2017 to 2018 by $5.9 million due to capital
spending in excess of loan proceeds and depreciation. Net Position Invested in Capital
Assets Net of related Debt decreased from fiscal year 2016 to 2017 by $3.2 million due to
loan proceeds and depreciation in excess of capital spending.
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WEST COUNTY WASTEWATER DISTRICT
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2018

SUMMARY OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
Table 2 presents the revenues and expenses for the current and two preceding fiscal years. 
The District is engaged only in Business-Type Activities.

Major Factors Affecting the Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Position:
 Total operating revenues for fiscal year 2018 were $21.5 million and total operating

expenses were $19.4 million, resulting in operating income of $2.1 million. This compares
to fiscal year 2017 operating revenues of $20.5 million and total operating expenses of
$17.9 million, resulting in operating income of $2.6 million. Sewer Use Charge

TABLE 2

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

% Increase % Increase

(Decrease) (Decrease)

2018 2017 2016 2018 vs. 2017 2017 vs. 2016

Revenues

Operating revenues

  Sewer use charge 21,047,634$  19,780,211$  17,290,831$  6.41% 14.40%

  Inspect/permit fees 231,481        300,183        248,888        -22.89% 20.61%

  Contract services 106,279        221,643        300,737        -52.05% -26.30%

  Other revenue 194,610        170,067        221,698        14.43% -23.29%

Total operating revenues 21,580,004   20,472,104   18,062,154   5.41% 13.34%

Non-operating revenues

  Property taxes 1,082,059     1,057,151     977,876        2.36% 8.11%

  Redevelopment allocation 312,470        160,943        141,994        94.15% 13.34%

  Rental income 311,948        90,941         353,536        243.02% -74.28%

  Investment earnings 298,133        61,556         70,451         384.33% -12.63%

Total non-operating revenues 2,004,610     1,370,591     1,543,857     46.26% -11.22%

Total revenues 23,584,614   21,842,695   19,606,011   7.97% 11.41%

Expenses

Operating expenses 19,494,299   17,859,203   15,963,955   9.16% 11.87%

Non-operating expenses 487,276        109,312        345.77%

Total expenses 19,981,575   17,968,515   15,963,955   11.20% 12.56%

Increase (decrease) before capital 

contributions 3,603,039     3,874,180     3,642,056     -7.00% 6.37%

Capital contributions: 

State capital grants 2,034,947     6,966,498     -70.79%

Connection fees 1,423,356     970,975        453,178        46.59% 114.26%

Total capital contributions 3,458,303     7,937,473     453,178        -56.43% 1651.51%

Change in net position 7,061,342     11,811,653   4,095,234     -40.22% 188.42%

Net position, beginning 93,344,056   81,532,403   77,437,169   14.49% 5.29%

Prior period adjustments (3,924,721)    

Net position, ending 96,480,677$  93,344,056$  81,532,403$  3.36% 14.49%
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WEST COUNTY WASTEWATER DISTRICT
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2018

(Environmental Quality Charge) revenue increased $1.3 million from fiscal year 2017 to 
2018 and increased $2.5 million from fiscal year 2016 to 2017 primarily due to the 11% per 
year rate increase, partially offset by reduced industrial user flows. 

 Operating expenses increased $1.6 million from fiscal year 2017 to 2018, and $1.9 million
from fiscal year 2016 to 2017, primarily due to increased professional services, GASB
75/68 cost, and chemicals.

 Non-operating revenues increased $0.6 million from fiscal year 2017 to 2018 primarily due
to increased investment earnings, rental income and redevelopment allocation. Non-
operating revenues decreased $174,000 from fiscal year 2016 to 2017 primarily due to
decreased rental income resulting from renegotiating a ground lease.

 The District’s non-operating expenses of $0.5 million for fiscal year 2018 consisted of
interest expense and loss on disposal of assets. This compares to $109,000 for fiscal year
2017 (primarily the valuation allowance on the ex-General Manger advance) and no non-
operating expenses for fiscal year 2016.

 Capital contributions were $3.4 million for fiscal year 2018, comprised of State capital
construction grants ($2.0 million) and customer connection fees ($1.4 million). This
compares to $7.9 million for fiscal year 2017, comprised of State capital construction
grants ($6.9 million) and customer connection fees ($1.0 million) and to $0.5 million for
fiscal year 2016, consisting of customer connection fees.

SUMMARY OF CAPITAL ASSETS
Table 3 presents a summary of the District’s capital assets for the current and two preceding 
fiscal years. More detailed information on capital asset activity is provided in Note 5 to the 
financial statements.

Capital Asset Highlights:
Capital Assets increased $12.0 million net, from fiscal year 2017 to 2018, due to net capital 
asset additions of $15.5 million, less depreciation expense of $3.2 million and retirements of 
$0.3 million. Capital Assets increased $22.4 million net, from fiscal year 2016 to 2017, due to 
capital asset additions of $25.5 million, less depreciation expense of $3.1 million. Additions for 
both years were primarily water pollution control plant upgrades and sewer pipe replacements.   

% Increase % Increase

(Decrease) (Decrease)

2018 2017 2016 2018 vs. 2017 2017 vs. 2016

Land 2,451,806$   2,451,806$   2,451,806$   0.00% 0.00%

Construction in process 12,310,461   41,922,254   18,507,918   -70.64% 126.51%

Sewage collection and treatment facilities 165,112,262  121,671,006  118,346,926  35.70% 2.81%

Equipment 5,668,557     5,490,716     7,093,874     3.24% -22.60%

Vehicles 2,992,278     2,631,732     2,283,740     13.70% 15.24%

Subtotal 188,535,364  174,167,514  148,684,264  8.25% 17.14%

Less accumulated depreciation (71,608,445)  (69,167,346)  (66,114,213)  3.53% 4.62%

Total capital assets, net 116,926,919$ 105,000,168$ 82,570,051$  11.36% 27.16%

TABLE 3

Summary of Capital Assets
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WEST COUNTY WASTEWATER DISTRICT
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2018

SUMMARY OF DEBT OUTSTANDING
Table 4 presents a summary of the District’s loans payable as of June 30, 2018, 2017, and 
2016. More detailed information on loan activity is provided on Note 9 to the basic financial 
statements.

Debt Highlights:
Loans payable net increased $6.1 million net from fiscal year 2017 to 2018 and increased $23.0 
million net from fiscal year 2016 to 2017, due to State Water Control Resource Board loans used 
to fund capital asset additions. These loans will be repaid using the additional sewer use charge
revenue resulting from rate increases.     

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S RATES 
 The Board of Directors approved 11% annual sewer service charge rate increases for fiscal 

years beginning July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2020 in order to contribute to funding $330 
million of maintenance and capital improvement costs identified by the 2012 20-Year 
District-Wide Master Plan. The fiscal year 2019 Budget includes $5.1 million of capital 
improvement projects.

 The District increased its sewer service charge per residence from $422 to $468 (+10.9%)  
effective July 1, 2016; to $519 (+10.9%)  effective July 1, 2017, and to $576 (+11.0%)  
effective July 1, 2018 with an equivalent increase for commercial and industrial 
customers.

 In order to reduce the burden on rate payers in the near term, the District applied for low 
interest loans and grants from the California State Water Resources Control Board (SRF)  . 
The SRF approved $9.4 million of grants and four loans totaling $44.3 million with interest 
rates of 1.0% or 1.9%. Repayment of these loans is dependent on future revenues.

 The District is committed to expending resources needed to treat wastewater to meet the 
environmental quality required by our permit. The District continues to identify areas to 
reduce spending and achieve efficiencies through its Strategic Plan and biennial budget 
process. 

FINANCIAL CONTACT
Please contact the Business Services Manager at (510) 222-6700, or accounting@wcwd.org. 
Specific requests may be submitted to:  Business Services Manager  West County 
Wastewater District, 2910 Hilltop Drive, Richmond, CA 94806-5238.
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WEST COUNTY WASTEWATER DISTRICT

Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2018

(With comparative totals for 2017)

2018 2017

Current assets
Cash and investments (Note 2) 32,042,212$  26,348,460$    
Accrued interest receivable 138,985         43,960             
Accounts receivable, net (Note 3) 345,114         556,715           
Materials and supplies inventory 155,119         148,014           
Prepaid items 96,520           88,030             

Total current assets 32,777,950    27,185,179      

Noncurrent assets
Notes receivable (Note 4) - 307,000
Other post-employment benefits - 363,721
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation (Note 5) 116,926,919  105,000,168

Total noncurrent assets 116,926,919  105,670,889    
Total assets 149,704,869  132,856,068    

Deferred outflows

Other post-employment benefits (Note 8) 1,191,000      -
Pension (Note 9) 4,210,992      3,189,791        

Total deferred outflows 5,401,992      3,189,791        

Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 6,826,684      3,463,895        
Accrued salaries and benefits 148,984         129,875           
Accrued interest payable 166,720         41,154             
Current portions of long-term liabilities

Compensated absences (Note 6) 851,451         906,254           
Loans payable (Note 7) 1,456,929      741,901           

Total current liabilities 9,450,768      5,283,079        

Noncurrent liabilities

Compensated absences (Note 6) 500,059         579,409           
Loans payable (Note 7) 30,231,243    24,863,183      
Net OPEB liability (Note 8) 4,334,000      -
Net pension liability (Note 9) 12,937,710    11,041,346      

Total noncurrent liabilities 48,003,012    36,483,938      
Total liabilities 57,453,780    41,767,017      

Deferred inflows

Other post-employment benefits (Note 8) 172,000         -
Pension (Note 9) 1,000,404      934,787           

Total deferred inflows 1,172,404      934,787           

Net position
Net investment in capital assets (Note 10) 85,238,747    79,395,084      
Restricted 1,861,014      918,426           
Unrestricted 9,380,916      13,030,545      

Total Net Position 96,480,677    93,344,055      

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

25



WEST COUNTY WASTEWATER DISTRICT
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

For the year ended June 30, 2018
(With comparative totals for 2017) 

2018 2017

Operating revenues

Sewer use charge 21,047,634$ 19,780,211$ 

Inspection/permit fees 231,481        300,183        

Contract services 106,279        221,643        

Other revenue 194,610        170,067        

Total operating revenues 21,580,004   20,472,104   

Operating revenues

Sewage collection 4,236,904     3,783,288     

Sewage treatment 7,298,501     6,784,087     

Administration 4,553,523     3,899,443     

Contract services 84,834          147,060        

West County Agency 121,698        174,212        

Total operating expenses before depreciation 16,295,460   14,788,090   

Operating income before depreciation 5,284,544     5,684,014     

Depreciation expense (3,198,839)    (3,071,113)    

Operating income 2,085,705     2,612,901     

Non-operating revenues
Property taxes 1,082,059     1,057,151     

Redevelopment allocation 312,470        160,943        

Rental income 311,948        90,941          

Investment earnings 298,133        61,556          

Interest expense (390,000)       -

Other expense (97,276)         (109,312)       

Total non-operating revenues, net 1,517,334     1,261,279     

Net income before capital contributions 3,603,039     3,874,180     

Capital contributions

State capital grants 2,034,947     6,966,498     

Connection fees 1,423,356     970,975        

Total capital contributions 3,458,303     7,937,473     

Change in net position 7,061,342     11,811,653   

Net position, beginning - as previously stated 93,344,056   81,532,403   

Prior period adjustment - change in accounting principle (3,924,721)    -

Net position, beginning - as restated 89,419,335   81,532,403   
Net position, ending 96,480,677$ 93,344,056$ 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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WEST COUNTY WASTEWATER DISTRICT

Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

(with comparative totals for 2017)

2018 2017

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash receipts from customers and others 25,773,342$    20,258,655$    

Cash paid to employees for salaries and wages (6,512,693)       (6,764,638)       

Cash paid to vendors and suppliers for materials and services (9,315,901)       (8,600,209)       

Net cash provided by operating activities 9,944,748        4,893,808        

Cash flows from non-capital financing activities

Property taxes 1,082,059        1,057,151        

Redevelopment allocation 312,470           160,943           

Net cash provided by non-capital financing activities 1,394,529        1,218,094        

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities

Net acquisition and contruction of capital assets (15,125,590)     (25,475,490)     

Proceeds from capital contributions 3,458,303        7,937,473        

Principal paid (958,527)          (83,013)            

Interest paid (264,434)          

Proceeds from loan issue 7,041,615        23,124,796      

Net cash provided by (used in)  capital and related financing activities (5,848,633)       5,503,766        

Cash flows from investing activities

Investment earnings 203,108           40,596             

Net cash provided by investing activities 203,108           40,596             

Net increase in cash and investments 5,693,752        11,656,264      

Cash and investments, beginning of the year 26,348,460      14,692,196      

Cash and investments, end of the year 32,042,212$    26,348,460$    

Operating income 2,085,705$      2,612,901$      

Depreciation 3,198,839        3,071,113        

Rental income 311,948           90,941             

Other revenue (expense), net (97,276)            (109,312)          

Effect of GASB 68 on net pension liability 940,780           286,307           

Effect of GASB 75 on net OPEB liability (246,000)          (160,773)          

(Increase) decrease in assets

Accounts receivable 211,601           (297,578)          

Inventory (7,105)              7,391

Prepaids (8,490)              6,821

Note receivable 307,000           102,500           

(Decrease) increase in liabilities

AP and accrued expenses 3,362,789        (384,198)          

Accrued salaries and wages 19,110             (302,000)          

Compensated absences (134,153)          (30,305)            

Net cash provided by operating activities 9,944,748$      4,893,808$      

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by operating activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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WEST COUNTY WASTEWATER DISTRICT 
Notes to Financial Statements 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018 
 

 
 

Note 1. Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
The West County Wastewater District (the District) is a sanitary district formed December 19, 1921 and 
operates pursuant to the provision of Section 6400 et. seq. of the State of California Health and Safety 
Code. The District is governed by an elected five-member Board of Directors that exercise the powers 
allowed by state statutes.  The District is a stand-alone government entity and is not financially 
responsible to any other governmental unit or agency.  

 
The criteria used in determining the scope of the financial reporting entity is based on the provisions of 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 61, The Financial Reporting Entity. The 
District is the primary governmental unit based on the foundation of a separately elected government 
board that is elected by the citizens in a general popular election. Component units are legally separate 
organizations for which the elected officials of the primary government are financially accountable. The 
District is financially accountable for a component (West County Agency) in which (1) the primary 
government and the component unit have a financial benefit or burden relationship or (2) management 
(below the level of the elected officials) of the primary government have operational responsibility for 
the activities of the component unit. 
 
Basis of Presentation 

 
The District’s financial statements are prepared in conformity with U.S. GAAP. The Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the acknowledged standard setting body for establishing 
accounting and financial reporting standards followed by governmental entities in the United States.  

 
Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 

 
The financial statements are reported using the "economic resources" measurement focus and the accrual 
basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses and recorded when a liability is 
incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Grants and similar items are recognized as 
revenue as all eligibility requirements have been met. Interest associated with the current fiscal period is 
considered to be susceptible to accrual and so has been recognized as revenue of the current fiscal 
period. Current assets and current liabilities are those amounts expected to be received in cash, 
consumed, utilized, or paid within the next fiscal year. 

 
The financial statements (i.e. the Statement of Net Position, Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and 
Changes in Net Position, and Statement of Cash Flows) report information on all activities of the 
primary government. The District accounts for its operations (a) that are financed and operated in a 
manner similar to private business enterprises – where the intent of the governing body is that the costs 
(expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing 
basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges; or (b) where the governing body has 
decided that periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, and/or net income is 
appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability or other 
purposes. 

 
In accordance with U.S. GAAP, the Statement of Net Position reports separate sections for Deferred 
Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources, when applicable. 
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WEST COUNTY WASTEWATER DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

Note 1. Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation (continued)

Deferred Outflows of Resources represent outflows of resources (consumption of Net Position) 
that apply to future periods and that, therefore, will not be recognized as an expense until that 
time.

Deferred Inflows of Resources represent inflows of resources (acquisition of Net Position) that 
apply to future periods and that, therefore, will not be recognized as revenue until that time.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and equivalents include all highly liquid investments with maturity of 90 days or less and are 
carried at cost, which approximates fair value.  

Investments

Investments are reported at fair value. Changes in fair value that occur during a fiscal year are 
recognized as unrealized gains or losses and reported for that fiscal year. Investment income comprises 
interest earnings, changes in fair value, and any gains or losses realized upon the liquidation or sale of 
investments.

U.S. GAAP defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value and establishes 
disclosures about fair value measurement. Investments, unless otherwise specified, are recorded at fair 
value in the Statement of Net Position and categorized based upon the level of judgment associated with 
the inputs used to measure their fair value. Levels of inputs are as follows:

Level 1 – Inputs are unadjusted, quoted prices for identical assets and liabilities in active 
markets at the measurement date.

Level 2 – Inputs, other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or 
liability through corroboration with market data at the measurement date.

Level 3 – Unobservable inputs that reflect management’s best estimate of what market
participants would use in pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.

Receivables

Customer accounts receivable consist of amounts owed by private individuals and organizations for 
services rendered in the regular course of business operations. Receivables are shown net of allowances 
for doubtful accounts. Uncollectable accounts are based on prior experience and management’s 
assessment of the collectability of existing accounts.
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WEST COUNTY WASTEWATER DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

Note 1. Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Materials and Supplies Inventory

Inventories consist of expendable supplies and are valued at cost using a first-in, first-out basis.

Prepaid Items

Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond the fiscal year end are 
recorded as prepaid items.

Capital Assets

Capital assets are valued at historical cost, or estimated historical cost, if actual historical cost was 
not available. Donated capital assets are valued at their estimate acquisition value of the date 
donated. The District policy has set the capitalization threshold for reporting capital assets at 
$5,000, each of which must have an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Depreciation is 
recorded on a straight-line basis over estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Sewage collection and treatment facilities 30 – 70 years
Equipment 4 – 10 years
Vehicles 3 – 15 years

Major outlays for capital assets are capitalized as construction in progress, and repairs and 
maintenance costs are expensed. Capitalized interest of $169,828 has been included in construction 
in progress for the year ended June 30, 2018.

Compensated Absences

The District has a policy whereby an employee can accumulate unused sick leave, compensatory time 
and vacation.  Immediately prior to retirement, employees with a satisfactory record of service who 
otherwise qualify for retirement may be granted time off from the job, with full compensation, for a 
period of time not to exceed the amount of their accumulated sick leave time, or 60 work days, 
whichever is shorter.  Management estimates that 90% of current employees will work until qualified for 
retirement and has accrued for 90% of accumulated sick leave balances, in addition to full accrual of 
accumulated compensatory time and vacation leave.

Net Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) Liability

For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows 
of resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the 
plan and additions to/deductions from the plan’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the 
same basis as they are reported by the plans (see Note 8). For this purpose, benefit payments (including 
refunds of contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with benefit terms. 
Investments are reported at fair value. 
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WEST COUNTY WASTEWATER DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

Note 1. Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Net Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) Liability (continued)

The following timeframes are used for OPEB reporting:

PARS June 30, 2018
Valuation date June 30, 2017
Measurement date June 30, 2017
Measurement period July 1, 2016 – June 30, 2017

Net Pension Liability

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows 
of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the 
plans and additions to/deductions from the plans’ fiduciary net position have been determined on the 
same basis as they are reported by the plans (see Note 9). For this purpose, benefit payments (including 
refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with benefit 
terms. Investments are reported at fair value. 

The following timeframes are used for pension reporting:

CalPERS June 30, 2018
Valuation date June 30, 2016
Measurement date June 30, 2017
Measurement period July 1, 2016 – June 30, 2017

Gains and losses related to changes in the total pension liability and fiduciary net position are recognized 
in pension expense systematically over time. The first amortized amounts are recognized in pension 
expense for the year the gain or loss occurs. The remaining amounts are categorized as deferred 
outflows and deferred inflows of resources related to pension and are to be recognized in future pension 
expense. The amortization period differs depending on the source of the gain or loss. The difference 
between projected and actual earnings is amortized straight-line over 5 years. All other amounts are 
amortized straight-line over the average expected remaining service lives of all members that are 
provided with benefits (active, inactive, and retired) as of the beginning of the measurement period.

Net Position

Net position represents the difference between all other elements in the Statement of Net Position and 
should be displayed in the following three components:

Net Investment in Capital Assets - This component consists of capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of debt that is attributable to the acquisition, 
construction, or improvement of those assets.

Restricted - This component consists of constraints placed on net position use through external
constraints imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or law or 
regulations of other governments.  It also pertains to constraints imposed by law or constitutional 
provisions or enabling legislation.
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WEST COUNTY WASTEWATER DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

Note 1. Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Net Position (continued) 

Unrestricted - This component consists of net position that do not meet the definition of "restricted" 
or "net investment in capital assets.”

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, the District policy is to use 
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the basic financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management 
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the 
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported 
amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those 
estimates.

Sewer Use Charge Revenue

Sewer use charges determined by the District are included on property tax bills of the County of Contra 
Costa (the County).  Sewer use charge revenue is recorded as revenue when received due to the adoption 
of the "alternate method of property tax distribution," known as the Teeter Plan, by the County.  The 
Teeter Plan authorizes the Auditor-Controller of the County to allocate 100% of the service charges 
billed, but not yet paid or collected to the District. Late payment fees and interest are collected by the 
County and not remitted to the District.

The County remits sewer use charges and property tax revenue to the District in three installments as 
follows:

55% remitted in December
40% remitted in April
5% remitted in June

Property Tax Revenue

Property taxes are levied on July 1 and are payable in two installments: November 1 and February 1 of 
each year. Property taxes become delinquent on December 10 and April 10, for the first and second 
installments, respectively. The lien date is January 1. The County bills and collects property taxes and 
remits them to the District according to a payment schedule established by the County.

The County is permitted by State law to levy property taxes at 1% of full market value (at time of 
purchase) and can increase the property tax rate by no more than 2% per year. The District receives  a 
share of this basic tax levy proportionate to what it received during the years 1976 – 1978. Property 
taxes are recognized in the fiscal year in which the taxes have been levied. The County remits property 
tax revenues to the District on the same schedule as sewer use charge revenues.
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WEST COUNTY WASTEWATER DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

Note 1. Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

New Pronouncements

For the year ended June 30, 2018, the District implemented the following GASB pronouncements:

GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than 
Pensions

The primary objective of this Statement is to improve accounting and financial reporting by state and 
local governments for postemployment benefits other than pensions (other postemployment benefits or 
OPEB). It also improves information provided by state and local governmental employers about 
financial support for OPEB that is provided by other entities. This Statement replaces the requirements 
of Statements No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits 
Other Than Pensions, as amended, and No. 57, OPEB Measurements by Agent Employers and Agent 
Multiple-Employer Plans, for OPEB. Statement No. 74, Financial Reporting for Postemployment 
Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans, establishes new accounting and financial reporting 
requirements for OPEB plans.

The scope of this Statement addresses accounting and financial reporting for OPEB that is provided to 
the employees of state and local governmental employers. This Statement establishes standards for 
recognizing and measuring liabilities, deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources, and 
expense/expenditures. For defined benefit OPEB, this Statement identifies the methods and assumptions 
that are required to be used to project benefit payments, discount projected benefit payments to their 
actuarial present value, and attribute that present value to periods of employee service. Note disclosure 
and required supplementary information requirements about defined benefit OPEB also are addressed.

In addition, this Statement details the recognition and disclosure requirements for employers with 
payables to defined benefit OPEB plans that are administered through trusts that meet the specified 
criteria and for employers whose employees are provided with defined contribution OPEB. This 
Statement also addresses certain circumstances in which a nonemployer entity provides financial support
for OPEB of employees of another entity.

In this Statement, distinctions are made regarding the particular requirements depending upon whether 
the OPEB plans through which the benefits are provided are administered through trusts that meet the 
following criteria:

 Contributions from employers and nonemployer contributing entities to the OPEB plan and 
earnings on those contributions are irrevocable.

 OPEB plan assets are dedicated to providing OPEB to plan members in accordance with the 
benefit terms.

 OPEB plan assets are legally protected from the creditors of employers, nonemployer contributing 
entities, the OPEB plan administrator, and the plan members.

The implementation of this pronouncement resulted in a prior period adjustment to the financials. See 
Note 8 for more detailed information.
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WEST COUNTY WASTEWATER DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

Note 1. Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

New Pronouncements (continued)

GASB Statement No. 82, Pension Issues - an amendment of GASB Statements No. 67, No. 68,  and No. 
73

The objective of this Statement is to address certain issues that have been raised with respect to 
Statements No. 67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans, No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting 
for Pensions, and No. 73, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and Related Assets That Are 
Not within the Scope of GASB Statement 68, and Amendments to Certain Provisions of GASB Statements 
67 and 68. Specifically, this Statement addresses issues regarding (1) the presentation of payroll-related 
measures in required supplementary information, (2) the selection of assumptions and the treatment of 
deviations from the guidance in an Actuarial Standard of  Practice for financial reporting purposes, and 
(3) the classification of payments made by employers  to satisfy employee (plan member) contribution 
requirements.

The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2016, 
except for the requirements of GASB 82 for selection of assumptions in a circumstance in which an 
employer’s pension liability is measured as of a date other than the employer’s most recent fiscal year-
end. In that circumstance, the requirements for the selection of assumptions are effective for that 
employer in the first reporting period in which the measurement date of the pension liability is on or 
after June 15, 2017. Earlier application was encouraged.

The implementation of this pronouncement did not have a significant impact on the District’s financial 
statements.

GASB Statement No. 85, Omnibus 2017

The objective of this Statement is to address practice issues that have been identified during
implementation and application of certain GASB Statements. This Statement addresses a variety of 
topics including issues related to blending component units, goodwill, fair value measurement and 
application, and postemployment benefits (pensions and other post-employment benefits [OPEB]).

The implementation of this pronouncement did not have a significant impact on the District’s financial 
statements.
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WEST COUNTY WASTEWATER DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

Note 1. Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Future Pronouncements

The following Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements are effective in future years 
subsequent to the current financial reporting period:

GASB Statement No. 83, Certain Asset Retirement Obligations

This Statement addresses accounting and financial reporting for certain asset retirement obligations
(AROs). An ARO is a legally enforceable liability associated with the retirement of a tangible capital
asset. A government that has legal obligations to perform future asset retirement activities related to its 
tangible capital assets should recognize a liability based on the guidance in this Statement.

The objective of this Statement is to improve comparability of financial statements among governments 
by establishing uniform criteria for governments to recognize and measure certain AROs, including 
obligations that may not have been previously reported. This statement will enhance the decision-
usefulness of the information provided to financial statement users by requiring disclosures related to
those AROs.

The District is required to implement the provisions of this Statement for the fiscal year ending June 30,
2019 (effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2018). The District has not yet determined the 
impact of this Statement on the financial statements.

GASB Statement No. 87, Leases

The objective of this Statement is to better meet the information needs of financial statement users by 
improving accounting and financial reporting for leases by governments. This Statement increases the
usefulness of governments’ financial statements by requiring recognition of certain lease assets and 
liabilities for leases that previously were classified as operating leases and recognized as inflows of 
resources or outflows of resources based on the payment provisions of the contract. It establishes a 
single model for lease accounting based on the foundational principle that leases are financings of the 
right to use an underlying asset. Under this Statement, a lessee is required to recognize a lease liability 
and an intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and a 
deferred inflow of resources, thereby enhancing the relevance and consistency of information about 
governments’ leasing activities.

This Statement will increase the usefulness of governments’ financial statements by requiring reporting 
of certain lease liabilities that currently are not reported. It will enhance comparability of financial 
statements among governments by requiring lessees and lessors to report leases under a single model. 
This Statement also will enhance the decision-usefulness of the information provided to financial 
statement users by requiring notes to financial statements related to the timing, significance, and purpose 
of a government’s leasing arrangements.

The District is required to implement the provisions of this Statement for the fiscal year ending June 30,
2021 (effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2019). The District has not yet determined the
impact of this Statement on the financial statements.
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Note 1. Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Future Pronouncements (continued)

GASB Statement No. 88, Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, including Direct Borrowings and Direct 
Placements

The objective of this Statement is to improve the information that is disclosed in notes to government 
financial statements related to debt, including direct borrowings and direct placements. It also clarifies 
which liabilities governments should include when disclosing information related to debt. This 
Statement defines debt for purposes of disclosure in notes to financial statements as a liability that arises 
from a contractual obligation to pay cash (or other assets that may be used in lieu of cash) in one or 
more payments to settle an amount that is fixed at the date the contractual obligation is established.

The District is required to implement the provisions of this Statement for the fiscal year ending June 30,
2019 (effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2018). The District has not yet determined the 
impact of this Statement on the financial statements.

GASB Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End of a Construction Period

The objectives of this Statement are (1) to enhance the relevance and comparability of information about 
capital assets and the cost of borrowing for a reporting period and (2) to simplify accounting for interest 
costs incurred before the end of a construction period. Such interest cost covered in the scope of this 
Statement includes all interest that previously was accounted for in accordance with the requirements of 
paragraphs 5-22 of Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance 
Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements, which are superseded by this 
Statement.

The District is required to implement the provisions of this Statement for the fiscal year ending June 30,
2021 (effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2019). The District has not yet determined the
impact of this Statement on the financial statements.

GASB Statement No. 90, Majority Equity Interests – an amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and 61

The primary objectives of this Statement are to improve the consistency and comparability of reporting a 
government’s majority equity interest in a legally separate organization and to improve the relevance of 
financial statement information for certain component units. It defines a majority equity interest and 
specifies that a majority equity interest in a legally separate organization should be reported as an 
investment if a government’s holding of the equity interest meets the definition of an investment. A 
majority equity interest that meets the definition of an investment should be measured using the equity 
method, unless it is held by a special-purpose government engaged only in fiduciary activities, a 
fiduciary fund, or an endowment (including permanent and term endowments) or permanent fund. Those 
governments and funds should measure the majority equity interest at fair value.

The District is required to implement the provisions of this Statement for the fiscal year ending June 30,
2020 (effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2018). The District has not yet determined the
impact of this Statement on the financial statements.
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Note 2. Cash and Investments

A summary of cash, deposits and investments as of June 30, 2018, is as follows:

Deposit or Investment
Cash on-hand or in banks $   3,204,510
Local Agency Investment Fund 28,837,702
Total Cash and Investments $ 32,042,212

Cash Deposits

At June 30, 2018, the carrying amount of the District’s demand deposits was $3,204,510, and the 
financial institution balance was $3,474,658. The difference of $270,148 represents outstanding checks, 
deposits-in-transit, and/or other reconciling items.

The California Government Code requires California banks and savings and loan associations to secure 
a district's deposits by pledging government securities with a value of 110% of a district's deposits. 
California law also allows financial institutions to secure a district's deposits by pledging first trust deed 
mortgage notes having a value of at least 150% of a district's total deposits. The District’s Treasurer may 
waive the collateral requirement for deposits which are fully insured up to $250,000 by the FDIC.

The collateral for deposits in federal and state charted banks is held in safekeeping by an authorized 
agent of depository recognized by the State of California Department of Banking. The collateral for 
deposits with savings and loan associations is generally held in safekeeping by the Federal Home Loan 
Bank in San Francisco, California as an agency of depository. These securities are physically held in an 
undivided pool for all California public agency depositors. Under Government Code Section 53655, the 
placement of securities by a bank or savings and loan association with an agent of depositor has the 
effect of perfecting the security interest in the name of the local governmental agency. Accordingly, all 
collateral held by California agents of depository are considered to be held for, and in the name of the 
local government. 

Custodial Credit Risk

The custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the depository 
institution, the District will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that 
are in possession of an outside party.  The District’s investment policy requires that collateral be held by 
an independent third party with whom the District has a current custodial agreement.

The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty to 
a transaction, the District will not be able to recover the value of investment or collateral securities that 
are in the possession of an outside party.  The District’s investment policy requires that security 
transaction be conducted on a delivery-versus-payment (DVP) method and that all securities are held by 
a qualified, third-party custodian, provided that the custodian agreement is separate from the banking 
agreement. With respect to investments, custodial credit risk generally applies only to direct investments 
in marketable securities. Custodial credit risk does not apply to a local government’s indirect investment 
in securities through the use of mutual funds or government investment pools (such as LAIF).

As of June 30, 2018, none of the District’s deposits and investments were exposed to disclosable
custodial credit risk.
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Note 2. Cash and Investments (continued) 

Investments

The District’s investments are June 30, 2018 were as follows:

Type of Investments
Measurement
Input

Credit
Rating

June 30, 2018
Fair Value

Maturity
12 months
or Less

Local Agency Investment Fund 
(LAIF) Uncategorized N/A $28,837,702 $28,837,702

Cash balances are invested to the extent possible pursuant to the District’s approved Investment Policy 
and Guidelines and State Government Code. Investments are stated at the current fair value.  Fair value 
information is provided as quoted on June 30, 2018.  The District does not plan to liquidate the 
investments before maturity and intends to hold the investments to maturity.

Authorized Deposits and Investments

The District is legally empowered by statute and resolution to invest in certificates-of-deposit and the 
California State Investment Pool – Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF). The District’s investment 
policy identifies other investment types that are authorized for the District to invest in under California 
Government Code.

Investment in State Investment Pool

The District is a voluntary participant in LAIF, which is regulated by California Government Code 
Section 16429 under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of California. The fair value of the
District’s investment in this pool is reported in the accompanying financial statements at amounts based 
upon the District’s pro-rata share of the fair value provided by LAIF for the entire LAIF portfolio (in 
relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio). The balance available for withdrawal is based on the 
accounting records maintained by LAIF, which are recorded on an amortized cost basis.

The District’s investments with LAIF at June 30, 2018 included a portion of the pool funds invested in 
structured notes and asset-backed securities.  

Structured Notes are debt securities (other than asset-backed securities) whose cash flow 
characteristics (coupon rate, redemption amount, or stated maturity) depend upon one or more
indices and/or that have embedded forwards or options.

Asset-Backed Securities, the bulk of which are mortgage-backed securities, entitle their purchasers to 
receive a share of the cash flows from a pool of assets such as principal and interest repayments from 
a pool of mortgages (such as Collateralized Mortgage Obligations) or credit card receivables.

The District had $28,837,702 invested LAIF, which had invested 2.67% of the pooled investment funds 
in structured notes and asset-backed securities at June 30, 2018. The LAIF fair value factor of 
0.998126869 was used to calculate the fair value of the investments in LAIF as of June 30, 2018.
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Note 2. Cash and Investments (continued) 

Fair Value Measurement Input

The District categorized its fair value measurement inputs within the fair value hierarchy established by 
generally accepted accounting principles. The District has presented its measurement inputs as noted in 
the above table.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an 
investment. Generally, the fair values of investments with longer maturities have greater sensitivity to 
changes in market interest rates. The District’s investment policy follows the Code as it relates to limits 
on investment maturities as a means of managing exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing 
interest rates. The District has elected to use the segmented time distribution method of disclosure for
the maturities of its investments as related to interest rate risk as noted in the table above.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The District’s investment policy contains no limitations on the amount that can be invested in any one 
governmental agency or non-governmental issuer beyond that stipulated by the California Government 
Code. There were no investments in any one governmental or non-governmental issuer that represented 
5% or more of the District’s total investments except for those in LAIF.

Note 3.  Accounts Receivable

At June 30, 2018, accounts receivable are comprised of the following:

EBMUD $   171,329
Permits and trucked waste    57,918
Chevron 46,477
Pretreatment inspections 26,562
Service contracts 11,051
All other 60,118    

Subtotal 373,455
Allowance for doubtful accounts       (28,341)

   Net Accounts Receivable $    345,114

39



WEST COUNTY WASTEWATER DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

Note 4. Note Receivable

The District and the General Manager (Manager) amended their employment agreement effective 
December 20, 2005, which included an advance of not more than 50% of the cost of a residence, to a 
maximum of $500,000, for the General Manager to reside within District boundaries.  Title to the 
residence shall be taken in the name of the Manager and, upon close of escrow of a sale of the residence, 
the District shall first be reimbursed its initial advance and the Manager shall then be reimbursed his 
initial down payment.  The net sale proceeds shall be allocated to the District and the Manager using the 
ratio of purchase cost.  The total amount advanced by the District as of June 30, 2016, was $409,500. In 
fiscal 2017, the General Manager’s contract was terminated, and the District reduced the carrying value 
of the note receivable by $102,500 to $307,000 based on the market value of the residence. On 
November 16, 2017, the residence was sold, resulting in cash proceeds of $295,263, a loss on the sale of 
$11,737 and reducing the receivable to $0.

Note 5. Capital Assets

A summary of changes in capital assets and depreciation is as follows:

Balance
July 1,
2017

Additions Deletions
Transfers
from CIP

Balance
June 30, 2018

Non-depreciable assets:

  Land $ 2,451,806 $ - $               - $                 - $ 2,451,806

  Construction in progress 41,922,254 14,045,680 (241,853) (43,415,620) 12,310,461

    Total non-depreciable assets 44,374,060 14,045,680 (241,853) (43,415,620) 14,762,267

Depreciable assets

  Sewage collection & treatment facilities 121,671,006 43,437 - 43,397,820 165,112,263

  Equipment 5,490,716 247,316 (87,276) 17,800 5,668,556

  Vehicles 2,631,732 1,170,250 (809,704) - 2,992,278

    Total depreciable capital assets 129,793,454 1,461,003 (896,980) 43,415,620 173,773,097

Less accumulated depreciation:

Sewage collection & treatment facilities (63,144,116) (2,883,912) - - (66,028,028)

  Equipment (4,077,066) (204,640) 84,619 - (4,197,087)

  Vehicles (1,946,164) (110,287) 673,121 - (1,383,330)

    Total accumulated depreciation (69,167,346) (3,198,839) 757,740 - (71,608,445)

Depreciable capital assets, net 60,626,108 (1,737,836) (139,240) 43,415,620 102,164,652

Total capital assets, net $ 105,000,168 $12,307,844 $ (381,093) $                 - $116,926,919
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Note 6. Accrued Compensated Absences

The accrued liabilities for compensated absences for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2018 was as 
follows:

Balance at
July 1, 2017 Additions Reductions

Balance at
June 30, 2018

Current
Portion

Non-current
portion

$ 1,485,663 $ 801,815 $ (935,968) $ 1,351,510 $ 851,451 $ 500,059

Note 7. Loans Payable

Summary changes in long-term debt balances for the years ended June 30, 2018 were as follows:

Description
Balance

July 1, 2017 Additions Deletions
Balance

June 30, 2018
Due Within
One Year

Interest
Payable

Loans Payable:
     SRF Loan – Phase I, Segment 1 $ 1,420,601 $              - $ (62,784) $ 1,357,817 $ 63,976 $ 3,887
     SRF Loan – Phase I, Segment 2 269,510 - (2,376) 267,134 - -
     SRF Loan – Phase I, Segment 3 8,961,501 1,845,231 (6,459) 10,800,274 466,993 154,931
     SRF Loan – Recycled Water Upgrades 14,953,471 5,196,384 (886,909) 19,262,947 925,960 7,901

          Total loans payable $ 25,605,083 $ 7,041,615 $ (958,526) $ 31,688,172 $1,456,929 $ 166,720

SRF Loan  Payable – Wastewater Facility and Collection System Rehabilitation Project  
Phase I,  Segment 1
In 2015, the District entered into an agreement  with the California  State  Water Resources  
Control  Board  (SWRCB) for a 20-year State Revolving Fund (SRF) loan in an amount not-to-
exceed $1,654,505  with an interest  rate of 1.90%  per annum for capital  projects. 

SRF Loan Payable - Wastewater  Facility  and Collection System Rehabilitation Project  
Phase I,  Segment  2
In 2015, the District entered into an agreement with the California  State  Water  Resources  
Control  Board (SWRCB)  for a 20-year State Revolving Fund (SRF) loan in an amount not-to-
exceed $2,881,758  with an interest  rate of 1.90%  per annum for capital projects. 

SRF Loan Payable - Wastewater Facility and Collection System Rehabilitation Project Phase 
I, Segment 3
In fiscal year 2015, the District entered into an agreement with the California State Water 
Resources Control Board (SWRCB) for a 20-year State Revolving Fund  (SRF) loan in an amount  
not-to-exceed  $14,593,521  with an interest  rate of 1.90% per annum for capital projects.

SRF Loan Payable - Recycled Water Reliability Upgrades
In fiscal year 2015, the District entered into an agreement with the California State Water 
Resources Control Board (SWRCB) for a 20-year State Revolving Fund (SRF) loan  in an  amount  
not-to-exceed  $30,457,093  with  an  interest rate of 1.00% per annum for capital projects. 
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Note 7. Loans Payable (continued)

Principal  and interest payments  on all loans are  due and  payable  each year as follows:

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total
2019 $ 1,456,929 $ 404,084 $ 1,861,014

2020 1,468,143 409,502 1,877,645

2021 1,487,624 390,021 1,877,645

2022 1,507,391 370,254 1,877,645

2023 1,527,448 350,197 1,877,645

2024-2028 7,948,608 1,439,617 9,388,225

2029-2033 8,496,420 891,805 9,388,225

2034-2039 7,795,610 304,018 8,099,628

Total $ 31,688,172 $ 4,559,500 $ 36,247,672

Note 8. Net Other Post-Employment Benefits

Plan Description

The District provides Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) to employees who retire from the 
District and meet certain eligibility requirements. Eligibility is based upon active employee status of the 
District at the time of retirement, completion of at least five years of employment with the District, 
having achieved the age of 50 or older, eligibility to retire under CalPERS, and not receiving health care 
benefits from any other source other than Medicare or workers’ compensation. The maximum 
employer’s contribution is limited to $1,500 per month, regardless of which coverage the retiree has 
selected. The contribution requirements of Plan members and the District are established, and may be 
amended by, the Board of Directors.

The District contracts with CalPERS to administer its retiree health benefits plan (an agent multiple-
employer defined benefit plan). In 2009, the District created a trust with Public Agency Retirement 
Services (PARS) for the purpose of prefunding obligations for past services. 

Employees Covered

As of the June 30, 2017 actuarial valuation, the following current and former employees were covered 
by the benefit terms under the Plan:

Active employees 57

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 35

Inactive employees entitled to, but not yet receiving benefits 3

    Total 95
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Note 8. Net Other Post-Employment Benefits (continued)

Contributions

The District’s plan and its contribution requirements are established by Memoranda of Understanding 
with the applicable employee bargaining units and may be amended by agreements between the District
and the bargaining units. The annual contribution is based on the actuarially determined contribution. 
For the fiscal year June 30, 2018, the District’s cash contributions were $815,000 to the trust, $261,000 
in benefit payments, and implied subsidy of $43,000 for total contributions of $1,119,000. 

Net OPEB Liability

The District’s Net OPEB Liability was measured on June 30, 2017 and the Total OPEB Liability used to 
calculate the Net OPEB Liability was determined by rolling back the total OPEB liability from the 
valuation date to the prior measurement date of June 30, 2016, based on the following actuarial methods 
and assumptions:

Actuarial Assumptions: June 30, 2017 Measurement Date
Actuarial valuation date June 30, 2017
Contribution policy District contributes full ADC
Discount rate 6.00% at June 30, 2017

6.00% at June 30, 2016
Expected long-term rate of 
return on investments

Same as discount rate. Plan assets projected to be sufficient to pay 
all benefits from trust

General inflation 2.75% per annum
Mortality, retirement, 
disability, termination CalPERS 1997 – 2011 experience study
Mortality improvement Mortality projected fully generational with Scale MP-17

Medical trend  Non-Medicare – 7.5% for 2019, decreasing to an ultimate rate of 
4.0% in 2076

 Medicare – 6.5% for 2019, decreasing to an ultimate rate of 
4.0% in 2076

Municipal bond rate N/A
Participation at retirement 100%
Medical plan at retirement  Pre-Medicare: Anthem Select – 10%, Anthem Traditional –

10%, Health Net SmartCare – 10%, Kaiser – 60%, PERS Choice 
– 10%

 Post-Medicare: Kaiser – 45%, UnitedHealthcare – 15%, 
PERSCare – 40%

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 6.00 percent. The projection of cash 
flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that District contributions will be made at rates equal 
to the actuarially determined contribution rates. Based on those assumptions, the OPEB plan’s fiduciary 
net position was projected to be available to make all projected OPEB payments for current active and 
inactive employees and beneficiaries. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan 
investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total OPEB 
liability.
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Note 8. Net Other Post-Employment Benefits (continued)

Changes in the OPEB Liability

Total
OPEB

Liability
(a)

Plan
Fiduciary

Net Position
(b)

Net OPEB
Obligation

(Asset)
= (a) – (b)

Balance at June 30, 2017
   (Measurement date June 30, 2016) $9,899,000 $ 5,219,000 $ 4,680,000

Changes recognized for the measurement period
Service cost 686,000 - 686,000
Interest 626,000 - 626,000
Employer contributions - 1,119,000 (1,119,000)
Net investment income - 553,000 (553,000)
Benefit payments to retirees (304,000) (304,000) -
Administrative expense - 14,000 (14,000)

Net changes 1,008,000 1,354,000 (346,000)

Balance at June 30, 2018
(Measurement date June 30, 2017) $ 10,907,000 $ 6,573,000 $ 4,334,000

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to the Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the Net OPEB Liability of the District if it were calculated using a discount rate 
that is one percentage point higher or lower than the current discount rate, for the measurement period 
ended June 30, 2017:

1% Decrease
(5.00%)

Current
Discount Rate

(6.00%)

1% Increase
(7.00%)

Net OPEB Liability $ 5,811,000 $ 4,334,000 $3,121,000

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to the Changes in the Health Care Cost Trend Rates

The following presents the net OPEB liability of the District if it were calculated using health care cost 
trend rates that are one percentage point higher or lower than the current rate, for the measurement 
period ended June 30, 2017:

1% Decrease Current
Trend Rate

1% Increase

Net OPEB Liability $ 2,975,000 $ 4,334,000 $ 6,003,000
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Note 8. Net Other Post-Employment Benefits (continued) 
 
OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net Position 
 
An audited financial report for the plan is prepared by the plan administrator, Public Agency Services 
(PARS) 4350 Von Karman Avenue, Ste. 100, Newport Beach, CA 94660-2043; (800) 731-7884. 
 
Recognition of Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources 

 
Gains and losses related to changes in total OPEB liability and fiduciary net position are recognized in 
OPEB expense systematically over time. Amounts are first recognized in OPEB expense for the year the 
gain or loss occurs. The remaining amounts are categorized as deferred outflows and deferred inflows of 
resources related to OPEB and are to be recognized in future OPEB expense. 
 
The recognition period differs depending on the source of the gain or loss: 

 Net difference between projected and actual earnings on OPEB plan investments – 5 years 
 All other amounts – Expected average remaining service lifetime (EARSL) 

 
OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB 

 
For the year ended June 30, 2018, the District recognized OPEB expense of $945,000. At June 30, 2018, 
the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB 
from the following sources: 

 Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources 

Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resources 

OPEB contributions subsequent to measurement date $ 1,191,000 $              - 
Net differences between projected and actual earnings   
   on plan investments - (172,000) 
Total $ 1,191,000 $ (172,000) 
 

The $1,191,000 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent to the 
measurement date that will be recognized as a reduction of the net OPEB liability in the year ended June 
30, 2019. 
 
OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB (continued) 
 
Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions will be recognized as OPEB expense as follows: 

 
Fiscal Year 

Ending: 
 Deferred Outflows/(inflows) 

of Resources 
2019  (43,000) 
2020  (43,000) 
2021  (43,000) 
2022   (43,000) 
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Note 9. Defined Benefit Pension Plan

General Information about the Pension Plans

Plan Description - All qualified permanent and probationary employees are eligible to participate in 
the District’s Miscellaneous Employee Pension Plan (the Plan), a cost-sharing multiple employer 
defined benefit pension plan administered by the California Public Employees’ Retirement System 
(CalPERS). Benefit provisions under the Plan are established by State statute and District resolution. 
CalPERS issues publicly available reports that include a full description of the pension plan regarding 
benefit provisions, assumptions and membership information that can be found on the CalPERS 
website.

Benefits Provided - CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living 
adjustments and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. A Classic CalPERS Miscellaneous 
member becomes eligible for service retirement upon attainment of age 55 with at least 5 years of 
credited service. Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act (PEPRA) Miscellaneous members become 
eligible for service retirement upon attainment of age 62 with at least 5 years of service. The service 
retirement benefit is a monthly allowance equal to the product of the benefit factor, years of service, 
and final compensation. The final compensation is the monthly average of the member’s highest 36 
full-time equivalent monthly pay. Retirement benefits for Classic Miscellaneous members are 
calculated as a percentage of their plan based on the average final 36 months’ compensation. 
Retirement benefits for PEPRA Miscellaneous members are calculated as a percentage of their plan 
based on the average final 36 months’ compensation.

The Plan provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2018, are summarized as follows:

Tier 1 PEPRA
Benefit formula 3.0% @ 60 2.0% @ 62
Benefit vesting schedule 5 Years 5 Years
Benefit payments Monthly for Life Monthly for Life

Retirement age 50 – 67 & up 52 – 67 & up
Monthly benefits as a % of eligible 
compensation

2.0 – 3.0% 1.0 – 2.5% 
Required employer contribution rates 12.698% 6.533%

Contributions - Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law requires that the 
employer contribution rates for all public employers be determined on an annual basis by the actuary 
and shall be effective on the July 1 following notice of a change in the rate. Funding contributions for 
the Plan are determined annually on an actuarial basis as of June 30 by CalPERS. The actuarially 
determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees 
during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. The District is 
required to contribute the difference between the actuarially determined rate and the contribution rate 
of employees.
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Note 9.Defined Benefit Pension Plan (continued)

General Information about the Pension Plans (continued)

For the year ended June 30, 2018, the contributions recognized as part of pension expense for the Plan 
were as follows:

Miscellaneous

Classic PEPRA Total

Employer contributions $   1,112,488 $  93,629 $ 1,206,117

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to 
Pensions

As of June 30, 2018, the District reported net pension liabilities for its proportionate shares of the net 
pension liability of the Plan as follows:

Proportionate
Share of Net

Pension Liability

Miscellaneous $     12,937,710

The District’s net pension liability for the Plan is measured as the proportionate share of the net 
pension liability. The net pension liability of the Plan is measured as of June 30, 2017, and the total 
pension liability for the Plan used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of June 30, 2016 rolled forward to June 30, 2017 using standard update procedures. The 
District’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the District’s long-term 
share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating 
employers, actuarially determined. The District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability for the 
Plan as of June 30, 2017 and 2016 measurement dates was as follows:

PERF C
Proportion – June 30, 2016 0.127600%
Proportion – June 30, 2017 0.130457%

Change in Proportions 0.002857%
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Note 9. Defined Benefit Pension Plan (continued) 
 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to 
Pensions (continued) 
 

For the year ended June 30, 2018, the District recognized pension expense of $2,146,902. At June 30, 
2018, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions from the following sources: 

 Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources 

 Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resources 

Pension contributions subsequent to measurement $ 1,206,117  $              -
Changes in assumptions 2,210,454  (168,549)
Differences between expected and actual experiences 17,815  (255,237)
Change in employer's proportion  276,692  (37,692)
Differences between the employer’s contributions and  
   employer’s proportionate share of contributions -  (538,656)
Net differences between projected and actual earnings  
   on plan investments 499,914  -
Total $ 4,210,992  $ (1,000,404)

 
Of the $4,210,992 reported as deferred outflows of resources, $1,206,117 related to contributions 
subsequent to the measurement date that will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in 
the year ended June 30, 2019. 
 
Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions will be recognized as pension expense as follows: 

 
Fiscal Year 
Ending: 

 Deferred Outflows 
(Inflows) of Resources 

2019  341,187 
2020  1,231,564 
2021  728,528 
2022   (296,808)  
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Note 9. Defined Benefit Pension Plan (continued)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to 
Pensions (continued)

Actuarial Assumptions - The total pension liabilities in the June 30, 2016 actuarial valuations were 
determined using the following actuarial assumptions:

Valuation Date June 30, 2016

Measurement Date June 30, 2017 

Measurement Period July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2017

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal in accordance with the requirements of 
GASB No. 68

Actuarial Assumptions:
Discount Rate 7.15%

Inflation 2.75%

Salary Increases Varies by Entry Age and Service

Investment rate of Return 7.15% Net of Pension Plan investment and administrative 
expenses; includes inflation

Mortality Rate Table Derived using CalPERS’ membership data for all funds.

Post-retirement benefit 
increase

Contract COLA up to 2.75% until Purchasing Power Protection 
allowance floor on purchasing power applies, 2.75% thereafter

The underlying mortality table used was developed based on CalPERS-specific data. The table 
includes 20 years of mortality improvements using the Society of Actuaries Scale BB. For more details 
on this table, please refer to the April 2014 CalPERS Experience Study and Review of Actuarial 
Assumptions report (based on CalPERS demographic data from 1997 to 2011) available on the 
CalPERS website at https://www.calpers.ca.goc/docs/forms-publications/calpers-experience-study-
2014.pdf.

Change of Assumptions – In the fiscal year 2016-17, the financial reporting discount rate for the PERF 
C was lowered from 7.65 percent to 7.15 percent. Deferred outflows of resources for changes of 
assumptions presented in the Schedule of Collective Pension Amounts represent the unamortized 
portion of this assumption change.
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WEST COUNTY WASTEWATER DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

Note 9. Defined Benefit Pension Plan (continued)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to 
Pensions (continued)

Discount Rate - The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.15% and reflects the 
long-term expected rate of return for the Plan, net of investment expenses and without reduction for 
administrative expenses. To determine whether the municipal bond rate should be used in the 
calculation of a discount rate for the Plan, the amortization and smoothing methods adopted by the
CalPERS board in 2013 were used. For the Plan, the crossover test was performed for a miscellaneous 
agent plan and a safety agent plan selected as being more at risk of failing the crossover test and 
resulting in a discount rate that would be different from the long-term expected rate of return on 
pension investments. Based on the testing of the plans, the tests revealed the assets would not run out. 
Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods 
of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability for PERF C. The crossover test 
results can be found on the CalPERS’ website.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-
block method in which ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension 
plan investment expenses and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.

In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-term and 
long-term market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Using historical 
returns of all the funds’ asset classes, expected compound returns were calculated over the short-term 
(first 10 years) and the long-term (11+ years) using a building-block approach. Using the expected 
nominal returns for both short-term and long-term, the present value of benefits was calculated for 
each fund. The expected rate of return was set by calculating the single equivalent expected return that 
arrived at the same present value of benefits for cash flows as the one calculated using both short-term 
and long-term returns. The expected rate of return was then set equivalent to the single equivalent rate 
calculated above and adjusted to account for assumed administrative expenses.

The table below reflects the long-term expected real rate of return by asset class. The rate of return was 
calculated using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and asset 
allocation. These rates of return are net of administrative expenses.
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WEST COUNTY WASTEWATER DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

Note 9. Defined Benefit Pension Plan (continued)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to 
Pensions (continued)

Allocation by Asset Class
New Strategic 

Allocation
Real Return

Years 1 – 10 (a)
Real Return
Years 11+ (b)

Global Equity 47.0% 4.90% 5.38%

Global Fixed Income 19.0% 0.80% 2.27%

Inflation Assets 6.0% 0.60% 1.39%

Private Equity 12.0% 6.60% 6.63%

Real Estate 11.0% 2.80% 5.21%

Infrastructure and Forestland 3.0% 3.90% 5.36%
Liquidity 2.0% -0.40% -0.90%
     Total 100.00%

(a) An expected inflation of 2.5% was used for this period.
(b) An expected inflation of 3.0% was used for this period.

Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability for the Plan, calculated 
using the discount rate for the Plan, as well as what the District’s proportionate share of the net pension 
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1- percentage point lower or 1-
percentage point higher than the current rate:

Discount Rate – 1%
(6.15%)

Current Discount Rate
(7.15%)

Discount Rate +1%
(8.15%)

$ 20,223,999 $ 12,937,710 $ 6,903,074

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about each pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued
CalPERS financial reports.

Note 10. Net Investment in Capital Assets

Net investment in capital assets consisted of the following at June 30, 2018:

Description Balance
  Net investment in capital assets:
      Capital assets not being depreciated $14,762,267
      Capital assets being depreciated, net 102,164,652
      Loans payable – current (1,456,929)
      Loans payable – noncurrent (30,231,243)

Total net investment in capital assets $85,238,747
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WEST COUNTY WASTEWATER DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

Note 11. Deferred Compensation Savings Plan

For the benefit of its employees, The District participates in IRC No. 457 Deferred Compensation 
Programs. The purpose of these programs is to provide deferred compensation for public employees that 
elect to participate in the Program. Generally, eligible employees may defer receipt of a portion of their 
salary until termination, retirement, death, or unforeseeable emergency. Until the funds are paid or 
otherwise made available to the employee, the employee is not obligated to report the deferred salary for 
income tax purposes.

Federal law requires deferred compensation assets to be held in trust for the exclusive benefit of the 
participants. The District is in compliance with this legislation. Therefore, these assets are not the legal 
property of the District and are not subject to claims of the District’s general creditors.

The District has implemented GASB Statement No. 32, Accounting and Financial Reporting for 
Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans. Since the District has little 
administrative involvement and does not perform the investing function for this plan, the assets and 
related liabilities are not shown on the statement of net position.

Note 12. Risk Management

The District participates in a joint venture under a joint power agreement (JPA) with the California 
Sanitation Risk Management Authority (CSRMA). The relationship between the District and CSRMA is 
such that CSRMA is not a component unit of the District for financial reporting purposes. CSRMA 
arranges for and provides workers’ compensation, property, liability, errors, and omissions insurance for
its member governmental entities. A board consisting of representatives from its member entities governs 
the CSRMA. The board controls the operations of the CSRMA including selection of management and 
approval of operating budgets, independent of any influence by the member agency beyond their 
representation on the board. Each member agency pays a premium commensurate with the level of 
coverage required and shares surpluses and deficits proportionate to their participation in the CSRMA. 
CSRMA has budgeting and financial reporting requirements independent of member units and its financial 
statements are not presented in these financial statements. Audited financial statements are available from 
the respective entity.

In addition to the primary insurance types provided for through CSRMA listed above, the District also 
maintains commercial fidelity bonds, public employee dishonesty and public official bonds, to protect 
against employee theft or defalcation. Settled claims for CSRMA or the District’s commercial fidelity 
bonds have not exceeded coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.
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ote  ommitments and ontingencies 
 

est ounty Agency  A oint enture 
 
The West County Agency the Agency  operates under a joint exercise of powers agreement JPA  
between the District, the City of Richmond, and the Richmond Municipal Sewer District. The 
Agency is a joint-venture, which is legally separate from its participants and is governed by a Board 
of Directors appointed by and from the governing boards of its member agencies. The Board of 
Directors establishes the Agency’s operating budget, which sets the contributions required from each 
of the member agencies and exercises the other powers specified in the JPA agreement. Expenses 
consist of pipeline and outfall operations and maintenance costs. Agency assets are held separately 
from the District’s assets, and the Agency does not hold any significant assets or liabilities at this 
time. As of June 30, 2018, the Agency has an unrestricted net position of 36,313. or more detail, 
the financial statements of the Agency are available at the District’s office. 

 
rant A ards 

 
Grant funds received by the District are subject to audit by grantor agencies. Such audits could lead 
to requests for reimbursements to the grantor agencies for expenditures disallowed under terms of 
the grant. Management of the District believes that such disallowances, if any, would not be 
significant. 
 

itigation 
 
In the ordinary course of operations, the District is subject to claims and litigation from outside 
parties. The District has reviewed all potential and pending litigation and provided for these 
liabilities and potential liabilities as part of accounts payable at June 30, 2018. 

 
 

ote  rior eriod Ad ustment  hange in Accounting rinciple 
 

As discussed in Note 1 and Note 8, the implementation of GASBS No. 75 resulted in a prior period 
adjustment, which decreased beginning net position as follows  
 

Net Position – beginning of year, as previously reported  93,444,056 
Prior Period Adjustment 3,924,721  
Net Position – beginning of year, as restated  89,419,335 

 
 

ote   Subsequent E ents 
 

Management has evaluated subsequent events through the date of the audit opinion, which is the 
date on which the financial statements were available to be issued. No events occurred which are 
material to these financial statements. 
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WEST COUNTY WASTEWATER DISTRICT
Required Supplementary Information

June 30, 2018

2018 2017 2016 2015

Measurement date 6/30/2017 6/30/2016 6/30/2015 6/30/2014

Proportion of net pension liability 0.130457% 0.127600% 0.120987% 0.116172%

Proportionate share of the net pension liability 12,937,710$  11,041,346$  8,304,443$    7,228,755$    

Covered  payroll 5,941,774$    5,722,480$    5,320,757$    4,275,865$    

Proportionate share of the net pension liability
as a percentage of covered  payroll 217.74% 192.95% 156.08% 169.06%

Plan's fiduciary net position as a percentage of
the Plan's total pension liability 73.31% 74.06% 78.40% 83.03%

Fiscal year ended 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Contractually required contributions (actuarially

 determined) 1,206,117$    1,145,214$    978,212$       808,084$       809,429$         

Contributions in relation to actuarially

determined contributions2 (1,206,117)     (1,145,214)     (978,212)        (808,084)        (809,429)          
Contribution deficiency (excess) -                     -                     -                     -                     -                       

Covered payroll 6,127,335$    5,941,774$    5,722,480$    5,320,757$    4,275,865$      

Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 19.68% 19.27% 17.09% 15.19% 18.93%

2 Employers are assumed to make contributions equal to the actuarially determined contributions. However, some employers may choose to make additional 

contributions towards their side-fund or their unfunded liability. Employer contributions for such plan exceed the actuarial determined contributions. CalPERS 

has determined that employer obligations referred to as side-funds are not considered separately financed specific liabilities.

Schedule of Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability

Last 10 Years
1

Fiscal Year End June 30,

1 Historical information is presented only for measurement periods for which GASB 68 is applicable. This required supplementary information is intended to 

present information for ten years. Additional years' information will be preseneted as it becomes available.

Schedule of Pension Plan Contributions

Last 10 Years1
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WEST COUNTY WASTEWATER DISTRICT

Schedule of Changes in the Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios 
for the Measurement Period Ended June 30, 2017

Total OPEB Liability

Service cost 686,000$     

Interest on the OPEB liability 626,000       

Benefits paid to retirees (304,000)      

Net change in total OPEB liability 1,008,000    

Total OPEB Liability - beginning 9,899,000    

Total OPEB Liability - ending (a) 10,907,000$

Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Employer contributions 1,119,000$  

Net investment income 553,000       

Benefits paid to retirees (304,000)      

Administrative expense (14,000)        

Net change in plan fiduciary position 1,354,000    

Plan fiduciary net position- beginning 5,219,000    

Plan fiduciary net position- ending (b) 6,573,000$  

Net OPEB liability- ending (a) - (b) 4,334,000$  

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total OPEB liability 60.26%

Covered-employee payroll 6,590,000$  

Net OPEB liability as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 65.77%

Notes to Schedule: 

Historical information is required only for measurement periods for which GASB No. 75 is 

applicable. Future years' information will be displayed, up to 10 years, as information becomes 

available.
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Fical Year Ended June 30, 2018

Actuarially determined contributions (ADC) 962,000$    

Contributions in relation to the ADC (1,191,000)  

Contribution deficiency (excess) (229,000)$   

Covered-employee payroll 6,625,000   

17.98%

Notes to Schedule:

Valuation date June 30, 2016

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal, Level Percentage of Payroll

Amortization Method/Period

Asset valuation method Market value of assets

Discount rate 6.25%

General inflation 3.00%

Medical trend

WEST COUNTY WASTEWATER DISTRICT

Schedule of OPEB Contributions

Last Ten Fiscal Years
1

Level percent of payroll with payroll increasing 3.5% 

per year

Non-Medicare - 7.0% for 2018, decreasing to an 

ultimate rate of 5.0% in 2023

1Historical information is required only for measurement periods for which GASB No. 75 is applicable. 

Future years' information will be displayed, up to 10 years, as information becomes available

Medicare - 7.2% for 2018, decreasing to an ultimate 

rate of 5.0% in 2023

Actuarial methods and assumptions used to set the actuarially determined contributions for Fiscal Year 

2018 were selected by the District after consultation with the actuary.

Method and assumptions used to determine contribution:

Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll
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WEST COUNTY WASTEWATER DISTRICT
STATISTICAL SECTION (Unaudited)
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Revenues by Type 66 - 67
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Debt Capacity
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District Population, Income and Unemployment 74
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Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the source of the information is the comprehensive annual 
financial reports for each fiscal year.
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WEST COUNTY WASTEWATER DISTRICT
STATISTICAL SECTION - INTRODUCTION

This section of the District’s comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed 
information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial 
statements, note disclosures and required supplementary information says about the 
District’s overall financial health

Financial Trends
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the District’s 
financial position has changed over time.

Revenue Capacity
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader assess the District’s most
significant revenue sources.

Debt Capacity
This schedule contains trend information to help the reader assess the District’s debt 
burden and its ability to issue additional debt in the future.

Demographic & Economic Information
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand 
the environment within which the District’s financial activities take place.

Operating Information
These schedules contain trend information about the District’s operations and resources to 
help the reader in using the District’s financial report to understand and assess its economic 
condition.
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FINANCIAL TRENDS

WEST COUNTY WASTEWATER DISTRICT
CHANGES IN NET POSITION AND STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Source: West County Wastewater District Audited Financial Statements
Continued on page 65

Change in Net Position 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Operating revenues:

Sewer use charge 21,047,634$      19,780,211$   17,290,831$   15,650,703$   14,038,949$   

Inspection/permit fees 231,481 300,183         248,888         316,476         192,139         

Contract services 106,279 221,643         300,737         329,339         316,961         

Other revenue 194,610 170,067         221,698         25,302 24,182

Total operating revenues 21,580,004        20,472,104    18,062,154    16,321,820    14,572,231    

-

Operating expenses:

Sewage collection 4,236,904          3,783,288      3,815,139      3,768,123      3,639,837      

Sewage treatment 7,298,501          6,784,087      5,976,699      5,704,464      5,208,478      

Administration 4,553,523          3,899,443      2,631,540      2,740,638      2,868,589      

Contract services 84,834 147,060         272,421         303,888         269,874         

West County Agency 121,698 174,212         148,541         107,463         133,670         

Depreciation expense 3,198,839          3,071,113      3,119,615      3,222,967      2,940,249      

Total operating expenses 19,494,299        17,859,203    15,963,955    15,847,543    15,060,697    

Operating Income (loss) 2,085,705          2,612,901      2,098,199      474,277         (488,466)       

Non-operating revenues (expenses):

Property taxes 1,082,059          1,057,151      977,876         900,157         790,139         

Redevelopment allocation 312,470 160,943         141,994         215,512         120,307         

Rental income 311,948 90,941 353,536         258,827         341,007         

Investment earnings 298,133 61,556 70,451 43,743 34,712

Interest expense (390,000)

Other revenue (expense), net (97,276) (109,312)       (2,275,124)     

Total non-operating revenues (expenses), net 1,517,334          1,261,279      1,543,857      (856,885)       1,286,165      

Net income before capital contributions 3,603,039          3,874,180      3,642,056      (382,608)       797,699         

Capital contributions: 

State capital grants 2,034,947          6,966,498      

Connection fees 1,423,356          970,975         453,178         816,533         202,478         

Contributed sewer lines

Total capital contributions 3,458,303          7,937,473      453,178         816,533         202,478         

Change in net position 7,061,342          11,811,653    4,095,234      433,925         1,000,177      

Net position

Beginning of year 93,344,056        81,532,403    77,437,169    86,070,895    85,070,718    

Prior period adjustments (3,924,721)        (9,067,651)     

Net Position - End of year 96,480,677$    93,344,056$ 81,532,403$ 77,437,169$ 86,070,895$

Net position

Invested in Capital Assets 85,238,747$      79,395,085$   80,006,751$   67,486,623$   70,302,862$   

Restricted 1,861,014$        918,426$       

Unrestricted 9,380,916          13,030,545    1,525,652      9,950,546      15,768,033    

Total Net Position 96,480,677$    93,344,056$ 81,532,403$ 77,437,169$ 86,070,895$
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WEST COUNTY WASTEWATER DISTRICT
CHANGES IN NET POSITION AND STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

Last Ten Fiscal Years (continued)

Source: West County Wastewater District Audited Financial Statements
Continued from page 64
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WEST COUNTY WASTEWATER DISTRICT
REVENUES BY TYPE

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Combined Revenues (in millions)

  Source:  West County Wastewater District Audited Financial Statements
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WEST COUNTY WASTEWATER DISTRICT
REVENUES BY TYPE

Last Ten Fiscal Years

FYE

June 30

Sewer Use 

Charge

Inspection/ 

Permit fees

Contract 

Services

Other 

Revenue

Total 

Operating

2009 8,518,032  168,958     154,732     265,122     9,106,844  

2010 9,762,875  143,275     134,890     117,759     10,158,799

2011 12,182,304 46,062 339,517     64,979 12,632,862

2012 12,239,921 45,645 332,037     45,097 12,662,700

2013 13,854,746 189,166     551,075     194,429     14,789,416

2014 14,038,949 192,139     316,961     24,182 14,572,231

2015 15,650,703 316,476     329,339     25,302 16,321,820

2016 17,290,831 248,888     300,737     221,698     18,062,154

2017 19,780,211 300,183     221,643     170,067     20,472,104

2018 21,047,634 231,481     106,279     194,610     21,580,004

Source:  West County Wastewater District Audited Financial Statements

OPERATING REVENUES

FYE

June 30

Property 

Taxes

Investment 

Earnings

Rental 

Income Other

Total Non-

Operating

2009 457,834     89,169 1,052,082  1,599,085  

2010 100,077     940,733     170,448     286,370     1,497,628  

2011 834,524     64,645 246,948     1,146,117  

2012 808,759     49,106 199,974     1,057,839  

2013 773,092     30,257 155,448     958,797     

2014 910,446     34,712 341,007     1,286,165  

2015 1,115,669  43,743 258,827     1,418,239  

2016 1,119,870  70,451 353,536     1,543,857  

2017 1,218,094  61,556 90,941 1,370,591  

2018 1,394,529  298,133     311,947     2,004,609  

Source:  West County Wastewater District Audited Financial Statements

NON-OPERATING REVENUES

Property Taxes include reductions due to the shift in property taxes related to the San Pablo 

Redevelopment Allocation and ERAF.
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WEST COUNTY WASTEWATER DISTRICT
OPERATING EXPENSES BY FUNCTION

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Source:  West County Wastewater District Audited Financial Statements

Source:  West County Wastewater District Audited Financial Statements

FYE

June 

30

Sewage 

Collection

Sewage 

Treatment Administration

Service 

Contracts WCA Depreciation Total

2009 2,655,270 5,131,650 2,062,106      69,787        125,365 2,747,202 12,791,380  

2010 2,847,920 6,023,821 2,713,479      55,756        91,085        2,814,261 14,546,322  

2011 3,176,367 5,940,831 2,515,705      239,973 148,273 2,856,717 14,877,866  

2012 2,908,773 5,712,477 2,554,171      287,977 105,041 2,735,155 14,303,594  

2013 3,372,341 6,798,874 2,935,722      474,623 172,391 2,921,783 16,675,734  

2014 3,639,837 5,208,478 2,868,589      269,874 133,670 2,940,249 15,060,697  

2015 3,768,123 5,704,464 2,740,638      303,888 107,463 3,222,967 15,847,543  

2016 3,815,139 5,976,699 2,631,540      272,421 148,541 3,119,615 15,963,955  

2017 3,783,288 6,784,087 3,899,443      147,060 174,212 3,071,113 17,859,203  

2018 4,236,904 7,298,501 4,507,522      84,834        121,698 3,198,839 19,448,298  

OPERATING EXPENSES
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REVENUE CAPACITY 

WEST COUNTY WASTEWATER DISTRICT
MAJOR REVENUE BASE AND RATES

Last Ten Fiscal Years

   Source: West County Wastewater District Schedule of User Fees. 
   Note:   All residential accounts pay a flat sewer service charge per household. 

  Charges for commercial users consist of an annual rate based upon measured 
volume of water usage.

    Source: West County Wastewater District Schedule of User Fees. 
    Note:   New customers connecting to the wastewater collection and treatment system are 

charged a connection fee to share the cost of existing infrastructure with all 
customers.
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WEST COUNTY WASTEWATER DISTRICT
PRINCIPAL REVENUE SOURCES

Current and Ten Years Ago

Source: West County Wastewater District Audited Financial Statements

Source:  West County Wastewater District Audited Financial Statements

70



WEST COUNTY WASTEWATER DISTRICT
PROPERTY TAX INFORMATION

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Assessed Valuation of Taxable Property within the District

FYE

June 30

County

Secured

County 

Unsecured Total

% 

Change

2009 7,796,654,191 194,438,391    7,991,092,582

2010 7,814,586,596 194,885,599    8,009,472,195 0.2%

2011 6,190,398,465 192,496,264    6,382,894,729 -20.3%

2012 6,555,576,933 195,169,554    6,750,746,487 5.8%

2013 6,135,176,625 232,644,475    6,367,821,100 -5.7%

2014 5,967,088,206 179,265,098    6,146,353,304 -3.5%

2015 6,747,353,358 184,879,011    6,932,232,369 12.8%

2016 7,355,374,837 204,228,652    7,559,603,489 9.1%

2017 7,907,856,769 199,944,749    8,107,801,518 17.0%

2018 8,484,774,635 197,601,420    8,682,376,055 14.9%

Source: Contra Costa County Auditor-Controller "Certificate of Assessed 

Valuations" 
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WEST COUNTY WASTEWATER DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF CAPACITY CHARGES
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WEST COUNTY WASTEWATER DISTRICT
DEBT CAPACITY AND LOAN REPAYMENT SCHEDULE

Ten Fiscal Years
Debt capacity
The District’s ability to borrow is dependent upon the capacity to increase sewer usage fees to 
pay for the proposed debt. The District is committed to balancing the costs of operations, 
maintenance, environmental compliance, and administration with the goal of minimizing the 
burden on ratepayers. The District has no current legal debt limit and there is no maximum 
allowable amount of debt that the District may borrow. 

During fiscal year 2015, the District applied for and was granted approval for four California 
State Water Resources Control Board (SRF) loans to finance capital improvement projects: 
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The District incurs the costs of the projects and submits claims for reimbursement to the SRF. 
To pay for these loans, the District passed resolutions to increase sewer use fees by 11% each 
year for the five years 7/1/15 through 6/30/20. District rates remain below the average for Bay 
Area special districts.

WEST COUNTY WASTEWATER DISTRICT
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC INFORMATION

Ten Fiscal Years

District Population, Income and Unemployment

Sources: * Population: State of California, Department of Finance, Demographic Research 
Unit, including adjustments, as of January 2018, based upon the approximate 
percentage of total population served in each of the following areas: through 
Fiscal Year 2010 - San Pablo 100%, Pinole 18%, Richmond 28% and unincorporated 
Contra Costa County 35%; effective Fiscal Year 2011 – San Pablo 100%, Pinole 8%, 
Richmond 31% and unincorporated Contra Costa County 21%.

* Total Personal Income: State of California, Department of Finance, Demographic
Research Unit, including adjustments, as of January 2018

* Unemployment Rate: State of California, Employment Development Department,
as of June 2017

Notes: (A) Data calculated by multiplying District population by Per Capita Personal Income
(B) Data presented for Contra Costa County – data not available at the District level.
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WEST COUNTY WASTEWATER DISTRICT
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC INFORMATION

Ten Fiscal Years

Population Served

Unemployment Rate - Contra Costa County
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WEST COUNTY WASTEWATER DISTRICT
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC INFORMATION

Ten Fiscal Years

Total Personal Income (in billions)

Per Capita Personal Income    
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WEST COUNTY WASTEWATER DISTRICT
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC INFORMATION

PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS
Current and Ten Years Ago

Source: Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2017 for 
City of Richmond, City of San Pablo and City of Pinole. Data is not available for the 
fiscal year ending June 30, 2018.

Note: Includes City of Richmond employees not within the District. Excludes employers in 
unincorporated Contra Costa County within the District. 

Source:  West County Wastewater District Audited Financial Statements

Employer

Number of 

Employees Rank

% of Total 

District 

Employment

Number of 

Employees Rank

% of Total 

District 

Employment

Chevron Refinery 3,521       1 3.0% 2,461       1 2.1%

West Contra Costa Unified School District 1,658       2 1.4%

Social Security Administration 1,259       3 1.1%

Blue Apron, Inc. 1,200       4 1.0%

U. S. Postal Service 1,047       5 0.9%

City of Richmond 871          6 0.7%

Contra Costa County 844          7 0.7%

Permanente Medical Group 793          8 0.7% 786          3 0.7%

Casino San Pablo 550          9 0.5% 520          5 0.5%

Kaiser Foundation Hospitals 506          10 0.4%

Doctors Medical Center 935          2 0.8%

Contra Costa College 0.0% 521          4 0.5%

Walmart Store 3455 350          6 0.3%

Costco Wholesale #482 278          7 0.2%

Berlex, Inc. 0.0%

California Autism Foundation, Inc. 250          8 0.2%

Macy's Hilltop 242          9 0.2%

The Home Depot #643 209          10 0.2%

Subtotal 12,249     10.3% 6,552       5.7%

All Others 106,191    89.7% 108,163    94.3%

Total workforce 118,440    100.0% 114,715    100.0%

FY 2017 FY 2007
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WEST COUNTY WASTEWATER DISTRICT
DEMOGRAPHIC & ECONOMIC INFORMATION

FULL TIME EQUIVALENT EMPLOYEES - BUDGETED
Last Ten Fiscal Years
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WEST COUNTY WASTEWATER DISTRICT
OPERATING INFORMATION

Ten Fiscal Years
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WEST COUNTY WASTEWATER DISTRICT
OPERATING INFORMATION

Ten Fiscal Years
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors
West County Wastewater District

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the business-type 
activities of West County Wastewater District, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the 
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the West County Wastewater 
District’s basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated November 21, 2018.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District’s internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control. Accordingly, 
we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a 
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control 
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies 
may exist that have not been identified. We did identify certain deficiencies in internal control, 
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs that we consider to be material 
weaknesses as follows:

Construction in Progress

During the audit, we noted that the District has a formal policy in place for reclassifying completed 
construction in progress (CIP) to the appropriate fixed asset accounts. However, it appears that there 
is a gap in communication between the engineering department and the finance department. This 
leaves the District open to the possibility that completed CIP projects will not be appropriately 
reclassified, depreciated, or reported for accounting purposes. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 
2018, this resulted in a material adjustment to the trial balance during the course of the audit.
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